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Legally protected whistleblower disclosures provided to my office appear to confirm the
allegations that Polaris is not reporting instances of potential human trafficking to law
enforcement.” For example, according to an internal Polaris case file, in March 2025, an
anonymous “signaler” contacted the NHTH and reported a “possible [sex trafficking (ST)]
situation.”® Polaris staff marked “Yes” for the case referencing potential minors and deemed the
“Level of Trafficking Indicators” as having “High Indicators.”® The case file also noted that the
estimated age range of potential victims were “15-17; 18-21; 22+,” and that the potential victim
indicated to the signaler she wanted police involvement.!® The case file further indicates that,
according to the signaler, the potential victim is afraid “[s]he’s going to be physically hurt by the
pimp running this company. She’s being forced to escort for sex and money.”!! It also notes
that there are no existing reports to law enforcement.'?> The signaler also disclosed that the
individual accused of trafficking the victim also forces other women, potentially minors, to
engage in these types of acts.!> Unfortunately, according to the records obtained by my office, a
member of Polaris’s staff reviewed and labeled the file “Work Not Required.”!* A
whistleblower told my office that this means the case is closed and law enforcement has not been
alerted."

Another legally protected whistleblower disclosure to my office shows similar
concerning behavior by Polaris and its staff. According to records provided to my office, in
February 2025, a potential victim contacted the NHTH to report a “situation of [sex trafficking
(ST)] involving herself and her minor sister.”! According to the records, the potential victim
and her minor sister were being held by two potential traffickers.!” Additionally, the case file
notes that both of the potential victims were United States citizens and that the “Level of
Trafficking Indicators” was marked as having “High Indicators.”'® Further, according to the
records, the potential victim “[w]ishe[d] to report, not anonymously.”!® However, the Polaris
case file noted that the potential victim stopped communicating “due to safety concerns.”?® The
case file status is described as “unclear situation as [potential victim (PV)] stopped responding”
and “Work Not Required.”?! According to legally protected disclosures to my office, that means
Polaris staff failed to report this potential trafficking to law enforcement and no other action was
taken.?

7 Letter from Tristan Leavitt, President, Empower Oversight to Megan Lundstrom, Chief Executive Officer, Polaris (Apr. 25,
2025), Exhibit 1; Exhibit 2; Exhibit 3;

8 Exhibit 2. (“Signaler” indicates that someone other than the potential victim contacted the NHTH.)
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As you are aware, Polaris has received millions in taxpayer dollars to run this hotline, and
if the grant is renewed, will receive an additional $9 million in funding.?? It’s imperative that
HHS ensure the hotline is running efficiently and effectively to protect the countless victims of
human trafficking. Additionally, for Congress to better understand HHS’s oversight of the
hotline and the Polaris Project, please provide answers to the following by May 19, 2025:

1. Does “Work Not Required” mean that law enforcement was not informed of the
information?

2. What steps has HHS taken to address the complaints raised by the Attorneys General
letters from 2023 and 2025? Provide all records.*

3. What specific steps has HHS taken to oversee Polaris and ensure its properly reporting
tips the hotline receives? Provide all records.

4. What steps has HHS taken to ensure the apparent conflicts of interest between Polaris and
Ms. Chon do not affect the contracting process? Has Ms. Chon been walled off from
these matters? If not, why not? If so, provide all recusal records.

Thank you for your prompt review and response. If you have any questions, please
contact Tucker Akin with my Committee staff at (202) 224-5225.

Sincerely,

Charles E. Grassley
Chairman
Committee on the Judiciary

23 Simpler Grants.gov, National Human Trafficking Hotline (NHTH) (Mar. 28, 2025), Office on Trafficking in Persons),
https://simpler.grants.gov/opportunity/355255.

24 “Records” include any written, recorded, or graphic material of any kind, including letters, memoranda, reports,
notes, electronic data (emails, email attachments, and any other electronically created or stored information),

calendar entries, inter-office communications, meeting minutes, phone/voice mail or recordings/records of verbal
communications, and drafts (whether they resulted in final documents).







Additionally, 41 U.S.C. § 4712, which I helped enact into law as Judiciary Committee
counsel to then-Ranking Member Chuck Grassley, states:

An employee of a contractor, subcontractor, grantee, subgrantee, or personal
services contractor may not be discharged, demoted, or otherwise discriminated
against as a reprisal for disclosing to a [covered] person or body . . . information
that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross mismanagement of a
Federal contract or grant, a gross waste of Federal funds, an abuse of authority
relating to a Federal contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public
health or safety, or a violation of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal
contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a contract) or grant.

The covered entities for which protected disclosures are authorized include congressional
committees, inspectors general, and “a management official or other employee of the contractor
... [or] grantee . . . who has the responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct.”
We are in communication with the HHS OIG regardingq placement on
administrative leave. In order to better understand Polaris’s position in this matter, we request

that you provide a more specific explanation as to why [|ij was placed on administrative
leave.

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter.
Cordially,

/Tristan Leavitt/
Tristan Leavitt
President

Empower Oversight

cc:  Chairman Charles E. Grassley
Committee on the Judiciary
U.S. Senate
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